
Vale of White Horse District Council 
Scrutiny Committee agenda - Thursday, 14 June 2018 

 Page 1 

Agenda 

 
Contact: Ron Schrieber, Democratic Services Officer 
Telephone number 01235 422524 
Email: ron.schrieber@southandvale.gov.uk  
Date: 6 June 2018 
Website: www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk 
 

 

 

A meeting of the  

Scrutiny Committee 

will be held on Thursday, 14 June 2018 at 7.00 pm  
Meeting Room 1, 135 Eastern Avenue, Milton Park, Milton, OX14 4SB 
 
 

Members of the Committee: 
 
Councillors  
Debby Hallett (Chairman) Vicky Jenkins  
Chris Palmer (Vice-chairman)  Sandy Lovatt 
Mike Badcock 
Matthew Barber 
Robert Hall 
 

Ben Mabbett 
Judy Roberts  

Preferred Substitutes 
 
Yvonne Constance Chris McCarthy 
StJohn Dickson  Emily Smith 
Anthony Hayward 
Dudley Hoddinott   

Reg Waite 
Catherine Webber 

Simon Howell 
 

 

 

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These 
include large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read.  For this or any 
other special requirements (such as access facilities) please contact the 
officer named on this agenda.  Please give as much notice as possible 
before the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
Margaret Reed 
Head of Legal and Democratic  
 

mailto:ron.schrieber@southandvale.gov.uk
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/


Vale of White Horse District Council 
Scrutiny Committee agenda - Thursday, 14 June 2018 

 Page 2 

 

Agenda 

 

Open to the Public including the Press 
 
Council's Vision  
 

The council’s vision is to take care of your interests across the Vale with enterprise, energy 
and efficiency.   
 

1. Apologies for absence  
   
To record apologies for absence and the attendance of substitute members.   
 

2. Minutes  
(Pages 4 - 14)  
  
To adopt and sign as a correct record the Scrutiny Committee minutes of the meeting held 
on 25 January and 8 February 2018 (attached)   
 

3. Declarations of interest  
   
To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect of items on the 
agenda for this meeting.    
 

4. Urgent business and chairman's announcements  
   
To receive notification of any matters which the chairman determines should be considered 
as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the matters urgent, 
and to receive any announcements from the chairman.   
 

5. Public participation  
   
To receive any questions or statements from members of the public that have registered to 
speak.   
 
REPORTS AND ISSUES FOR THE CONSIDERATION OF THE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
 

6. Oxfordshire Infrastructure Strategy  
(Pages 15 - 32)  
  
To consider the report of the head of planning (attached). 
 

7. Business and Innovation Strategy Action Plan 2017 to 2020 Update  
(Pages 33 - 53)  
  
To consider the report of the head of development and regeneration (attached). 
 



Vale of White Horse District Council 
Scrutiny Committee agenda - Thursday, 14 June 2018 

 Page 3 

8. Self-assessment  
  
To receive the verbal report of the head of corporate services. 
 

9. Work schedule and dates for all South and Vale scrutiny meetings  
(Pages 54 - 58)  
  
To review the attached scrutiny work schedule. Please note, although the dates are 
confirmed, the items under consideration are subject to being withdrawn, added to or 
rearranged without further notice. 
 



 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny Committee minutes  

Thursday, 25 January 2018  Sc.1 

Minutes 

of a meeting of the 

Scrutiny Committee 

 

held on Thursday, 25 January 2018 at 7.00 pm 
at the Meeting Room 1, 135 Eastern Avenue, Milton Park, Milton, OX14 4SB  
 
 

Open to the public, including the press 
 

Present:  
 
Members: Councillors Debby Hallett (Chairman), Alice Badcock (Vice-Chairman), 
Vicky Jenkins, Sandy Lovatt, Chris Palmer, Judy Roberts, Ben Mabbett (In place of Mike 
Badcock) and Yvonne Constance (In place of Mohinder Kainth) 
 

Officers:  
 
Jayne Bolton, Andrew Down, Adrian Duffield, Liz Hayden, Adrianna Partridge, Margaret 
Reed and Ron Schrieber 
 
Also present:  
 
Councillors Matthew Barber, Helen Pighills and Emily Smith  
Councillor John Cotton (South Oxfordshire District Council) 
 
 

Sc.52 Apologies for absence  
 
Councillors Mike Badcock (substituted by Ben Mabbett) and Mohinder Kainth (substituted 
by Yvonne Constance), submitted apologies. 
 

Sc.53 Minutes  
 
The minutes of the meetings held on 30 November and 14 December 2017 were agreed 
as an accurate record and were signed by the Chairman. 
 

Sc.54 Declarations of interest  
 
Councillor Sandy Lovatt declared a non-pecuniary interest in Agenda Item 6: Partnership 
Grants, as his wife was the council’s representative and/or trustee on organisations in 
receipt of partnership grants. 
 
Councillor Chris Palmer declared a non-pecuniary interest in Agenda Item 6: Partnership 
Grants, as he was the council’s representative on an organisation in receipt of a 
partnership grant. 

Page 4

Agenda Item 2



Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny Committee minutes  

Thursday, 25 January 2018  Sc.2 

 

Sc.55 Urgent business and chairman's announcements  
 
None. 
 

Sc.56 Public participation  
 
None. 
 

Sc.57 Partnership Grants  
 
The committee considered the report of the interim head of corporate services on the 
partnership grant scheme. 
 
Jayne Bolton, interim communications and grants manager, introduced this item. Also 
present to answer questions was Councillor Matthew Barber, Leader of the Council.  
 

The report stated that, historically, award decisions had been informal and the budget for 
the scheme had been based on these decisions and then agreed as part of the council’s 
budget setting process. In recent years, the Cabinet member for grants determined the 
awards based on officer advice about each organisation’s financial situation, performance 
targets and business cases, where relevant. 
 
In response to members’ questions, the committee was informed that: 

 Over the last three years, there had been a move away from revenue grant funding. 

 The number of organisations receiving partnership grant funding had reduced 
significantly in recent years.  With the exception of the Albert Memorial (Abingdon) 
Trust, where was a legal commitment to continue grant funding until 2021, the only 
organisations receiving these grants were providing services that, if they ceased to 
do so, would put pressure on the council to provide. 

 Due to financial pressures and the annual requirement to secure funding for this 
scheme, new applications were not being accepted.  Organisations seeking funding 
were directed to other council grant schemes including festival, capital and new 
homes bonus. 

 Last year, officers gave an update to Cabinet members on partnership grants and 
arranged presentations by representatives of South and Vale Citizens’ Advice 
Bureau and Wantage Independent Advice Centre. This year, similar presentations 
could be arranged for all councillors if members wished. 

 
RESOLVED: to note the report. 
 

Sc.58 Ask the Leader  
 
Councillor Matthew Barber, Leader of the Council, attended to answer questions relating to 
the business of the district. 
 
Councillor Helen Pighills had submitted the following question: 
 
“The Upper Reaches has been empty now for a number of years. Could the Leader please 
give an update regarding its future?  Also while it is empty, who is responsible for the 
maintenance of the buildings including the part of premises that is listed?” 

Councillor Barber replied that the council was the freeholder but that the maintenance of 
the building was the tenant’s responsibility. Whilst he was of the view that the best option 

Page 5



Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny Committee minutes  

Thursday, 25 January 2018  Sc.3 

would be to retain the building as a hotel, there was no legal obligation on the tenant to 
keep the hotel open. He understood that the tenant was in pre-application discussions with 
the planning department.  

Councillor Emily Smith had submitted the following question: 
 
“The announcement that Old Abbey House in Abingdon will be used for council housing 
marks a change in approach for the Vale. What policies and strategy are the council using, 
or developing, to guide the Vale in providing housing for social rent directly?” 
 
Councillor Barber replied that, in accordance with the Corporate Plan objective to support 
all types of affordable housing, the council was considering a range of options for Old 
Abbey House. 
 
Councillor Judy Roberts had submitted the following question: 
 
“On the Vale of White Horse corporate risk register only a quarter of the areas are in the 
green. One third of the areas are red, most of these highlight a need of effective 
management. What plans do we have to address these risks especially in the light of area 
11? A breach of personal information as stated by the data regulations in place by May 
would leave the Council exposed to a maximum fine of 4% of gross turnover.” 
 
Councillor Barber replied that the colour coding of risks in the risk register illustrated their 
significance rather than the likelihood of occurrence and he would be more concerned if 
the council was not identifying various risks as serious.  
 
The council’s risk management strategy and framework had been approved and a 
progress report on the development of the corporate risk register would be considered by 
the Joint Audit and Governance Committee on 29 January. The committee would also 
receive progress reports at regular intervals. 
 
Councillor Debby Hallett had submitted the following question: 
 
“In the aftermath of the Carillion collapse, I’ve been looking into the wider issue of 
outsourcing public services as a decision and the associated risks. Whenever a decision is 
made to outsource public services to an external provider, we outsource the work but not 
the responsibility. It is still Vale that must meet payroll, manage HR issues, Keep the IT 
systems working, replace batteries in officers’ mobile telephones, and repair or replace 
wobbly tables in our offices. I see places where performance is falling short, yet the KPIs 
are still green.   
 
When Cabinet decided to outsource this work, who at Vale took on the responsibility of 
managing the contracts with the outsourcing companies to ensure we were still delivering 
our services? What issues have arisen in contract management and what’s been the cost 
of that? For example, how much have we had to spend on retained officers’ work in 
keeping the Capita KPIs green? And now that we see what happens when a company 
goes bust, what sort of contingency plans have council developed us to protect us in the 
event of a Capita collapse?” 
 
Councillor Barber replied that the council had outsourced many contracts most of which 
were working well.  However, it was sensible to have plans in place in the event of the 
potential collapse of any of these contracts. 
 
A joint client team operated across the Five Councils’ Partnership and the client 
relationship director had delegated authority to act for each of the partner councils in 

Page 6



Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny Committee minutes  

Thursday, 25 January 2018  Sc.4 

managing the performance of the contractors. Most of the operational problems with the 
Capita contract had occurred in the transformation activities in HR and IT rather than in 
services operating on a “business as usual” basis. There were rectification plans (within 
the provisions of the contract and at no cost to the council) in those areas where the 
required service standards had not been achieved.   
 
Councillor Sandy Lovatt had submitted the following question: 
 
“I want to ask about your ideas on economic development in the Vale. I am aware of the 
big programmes such as Science Vale and the Didcot Garden Town, which provide the 
wider context for economic development. However, I would like to challenge your SME 
Strategy, which has the following four main components: 
 
 Business Support 
 Skills & Labour Force 
 Infrastructure Planning 
 Business Space. 

 
I suggest that there is a missing element; namely “Supporting the SME Markets”. 
 
I say this because Small Businesses (less than 50 employees) make up 98% of the 
business population. Even more significant Micro Businesses (less than 10 employees) 
make up 95%. Less than 30% of Micro businesses can benefit from your SME strategy. 
 Do you have any ideas for supporting the market environment of small and micro 
businesses in the Vale?” 
 
Councillor Barber replied that the business investment strategy action plan themes 
provided a range of ways in which the council could offer support and guidance to all 
businesses, from the smallest to the largest in the district. 
 
Councillor Roberts had submitted the following question: 
 
“The Expenses claim system was out sourced as part of the 5 councils joint contract. It is 
still not working reliably. What measures have been taken to correct this?” 
 
Councillor Barber referred to his previous answer to Councillor Hallett’s question. 
 
Councillor Hallett had submitted the following question: 
 
“Last year the external auditors found that Council decision makers had let too many 
managers leave the council without replacement, to the extent that we didn’t have enough 
people left to do the required work of council. I’ve personally heard of a few service areas 
that had delays in delivering their planned work for the last two years or so due to lack of 
resources. For example, Environmental Health team was mentioned in full council, and the 
Communications team have delayed their Communications Strategy work. Which other 
service areas are suffering in performance due to lack of resources? What’s being done to 
remedy this situation?” 
 
Councillor Barber replied that the question related to two separate issues, capacity at 
senior management level and financial resources. With regard to the former, it was 
recognised some time ago that there was a lack of capacity at senior management level.  
Regrettably, the required management restructure had been delayed for reasons that 
councillors were aware but was now in progress and would result in an increased number 
of heads of service. 
 

Page 7



Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny Committee minutes  

Thursday, 25 January 2018  Sc.5 

With regard to the latter, the council continued to perform well given its limited resources 
and was allocating increased funding for additional posts. 
 
Councillors Yvonne Constance and Chris Palmer asked questions about the household 
waste collection, street cleansing and ancillary services contact. 
 
Councillor Barber replied that Biffa’s performance was, generally, very good and that the 
build up of litter along some roads may have more to do with the contract specifications 
rather than poor performance. He urged members to report any such issues to Biffa. 
 
Councillor Barber acknowledged that there had been problems with textile collections but 
did not believe that the expansion of other collections should be put on hold until these 
problems were ironed out.  He also acknowledged that there had been some missed bin 
collections recently. He believed that this was mainly due to changes in the collection 
rounds and that the situation would improve. 
 
Councillor Barber advised councillors to submit bids if they wanted to increase the number 
of deep cleans. 
 
Councillor Ben Mabbett asked a question about the council’s recycling rates. 
 
Councillor Barber replied that the Vale continued to have one of the best recycling rates in 
the country but a number of other authorities were catching up.  He believed that the best 
way to maintain and/or improve the Vale’s performance was to ensure that the collection 
process was as simple as possible. 
 
Councillor Alice Badcock asked a question about problems accessing the council email 
system on android devices. 
 
Councillor Barber replied that this was likely to be a software problem. 
 
Councillor Vicky Jenkins asked a question about the impact on the council of China’s 
decision to restrict imported waste. 
 
Councillor Barber replied that, whilst this council collected the waste, Oxfordshire County 
Council was responsible for its disposal.  However, he did not believe that it should be 
financially beneficial for local authorities to transport waste produced here to China, given 
the environmental costs. In his opinion, a review of the Government’s policies on waste 
disposal, including the cost of landfill, was required, to ensure that recycling was 
economically as well as environmentally rewarding. 
 
Councillor Palmer asked a question about the “Refill UK” initiative. 
 
Councillor Barber replied that drinking water was already available in council facilities. 
 
Councillor Mabbett asked a question about parking standards. 
 
Councillor Barber replied that the council sought to adhere to Oxfordshire County Council’s 
recommended parking standards. However, his personal view was that parking standards 
in rural areas of the district, with little or no public transport, should differ from those in 
more built-up areas with good transport links.  He also noted that the parking standards 
used to recommend a minimum provision but now set out the maximum. 
 
Councillor Roberts asked a question about cycle networks. 
 

Page 8



Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny Committee minutes  

Thursday, 25 January 2018  Sc.6 

Councillor Barber replied that, whilst resources were limited, he would support CIL money 
being directed towards a number of cycle paths along key routes. 
 
On behalf of the committee, the chairman thanked the Leader for answering councillors’ 
questions. 
 

Sc.59 Work schedule and dates for all South and Vale scrutiny 
meetings  

 
The committee considered its work programme and noted that the review of the joint 
communications strategy, which had been scheduled for submission to Joint Scrutiny 
Committee on 6 March, had been deferred to a later date. 
 
The committee agreed: 
 
1. To cancel the scrutiny committee meeting which had been scheduled for 29 March. 
2. That a longlisting workshop, to identify potential topics for the committee’s future 

consideration, be held on 10 April. 
 
 
 
 
The meeting closed at 9.00 pm 
 
 

Page 9



 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny Committee minutes  

Thursday, 8 February 2018  Sc.1 

Minutes 

of a meeting of the 

Scrutiny Committee 

 

held on Thursday, 8 February 2018 at 7.00 pm 
in Meeting Room 1, 135 Eastern Avenue, Milton Park, Milton, OX14 4SB  
 

Open to the public, including the press 
 

Present:  
 
Members: Councillors Debby Hallett (Chairman), Mike Badcock, Robert Hall, 
Vicky Jenkins, Sandy Lovatt, Chris Palmer and Judy Roberts 
 

Officers: Gerry Brough, Simon Hewings, William Jacobs, Adrianna Partridge, Ron 
Schrieber and Mark Stone 
 
Also present: Councillors Robert Sharp and Elaine Ware; Richard Spraggett (Capita 
Accountancy)  
 
 

Sc.60 Apologies for absence  
 
Councillors Alice Badcock and Ben Mabbett submitted apologies. 
 

Sc.61 Declarations of interest  
 
None. 
 

Sc.62 Urgent business and chairman's announcements  
 
The chairman welcomed Cllr Robert Hall, who had recently been appointed to the 
committee and reported that Cllr Ben Mabbett had also been appointed but had been 
unable to attend this meeting. 
 
The chairman informed the committee that she had met with Adrianna Partridge, 
head of corporate services, and had asked her to clarify to the committee, the 
respective roles of scrutiny and audit and governance committees. 
 
The head of corporate services reported that scrutiny committee contributed towards 
the development of policies and strategy.  It could challenge decisions made by the 
executive and had a role in scrutinising delivery and performance.  
  
Audit and governance committee needed to satisfy itself that an adequate control 
environment was in place and, therefore, contributed towards the assessment of 
control processes and reviewed the operation of controls and procedural 
compliance.  

Page 10



Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny Committee minutes  

Thursday, 8 February 2018  Sc.2 

 

Sc.63 Public participation  
 
None. 
 

Sc.64 Houses that people can afford  
 
The committee considered the report of the interim head of development, 
regeneration and housing which set out actions that were being taken and which 
could be taken, within the Vale of White Horse, to increase the number of houses for 
rent or sale that were truly affordable to the average working family or person.  
 
Councillor Elaine Ware, Cabinet member for housing, introduced the report. Also 
present to answer questions was Gerry Brough, interim head of development, 
regeneration and housing. 
 
The Cabinet member reported that the provision of affordable housing that was truly 
affordable to everyone was an issue that national and local governments have been 
wrestling with for many years. At the heart of the problem was the fact that, to make 
housing affordable, houses for sale and/or rent needed to be available at below 
market value prices or rental levels. Reducing market value or rental levels meant 
houses needed to be built more cheaply or potential owners and tenants needed to 
be provided with some form of subsidy (most likely in the form of tax relief and/or 
housing benefit). Building houses more cheaply could only be done if the cost of 
land, materials, labour and capital could be reduced and no development profit, or 
less development profit, was allowed for. 
 

In response to members’ questions, it was reported that: 

 The 2014 Strategic Housing Market Assessment for Oxfordshire(SHMA) uses 
a benchmark of costs not exceeding 35% of a household’s gross income to 
assess the affordability of rented accommodation. Based on this criterion, 
even the least expensive 2 bedroom homes for rent in the district were likely 
to be beyond the means of households whose earnings were within the lower 
quartile. Those on median level earnings were also likely to struggle with the 
cost of renting a modest 3-bedroom home. 

 Although the SHMA benchmark was used by planning policy, a more accurate 
assessment of affordability would be the Institute of Public Policy Research 
criteria which were based on net, rather than gross, income. 

 The lower quartile property purchase price in the Vale, in 2016, was 
£255,000. Assuming a deposit of 10% was available to a purchaser, the 
minimum annual income needed to obtain a mortgage for the balance would 
be £57,375, which was well in excess of both lower quartile and median 
earnings in the Vale. 

 Despite the lack of truly affordable housing, the Vale had the lowest 
homelessness rate in Oxfordshire.  However, it was recognised that there was 
an increasing number of people who did not have a home of their own but did 
not meet the statutory definition of homelessness. 

 1,122 new build affordable homes had been completed in the Vale between 
April 2012 and March 2017 of which 834 were for rent and 288 for shared 
ownership. 

Page 11



Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny Committee minutes  

Thursday, 8 February 2018  Sc.3 

 The provision of newbuild homes for shared ownership had been through 
Registered Providers (RPs). Whilst Section 106 agreements stipulated that 
the initial share purchase could be as low as 25%, some RPs advertised their 
preferred model of a minimum 40% share purchase. 

 
The report set out the ways in which the council could intervene in the market to 
improve the affordability of houses across the district and concluded that, without the 
risks being underwritten by Government, the council did not have sufficient 
resources to make anything more than a marginal impact.  
 

The committee thanked the Cabinet member and officer for their informative report 
and agreed that, in order to make housing more affordable to the average working 
family or person, action was required at national level.  
 
The committee considered how the council might influence national planning policies 
and 
 
RESOLVED: to RECOMMEND the Cabinet to: 
 
1. Take all necessary steps to seek a better relationship with Central Government 

in order to influence national planning policies; and 
 
2. Respond to the review panel led by Sir Oliver Letwin looking at the gap between 

the number of planning permissions granted and homes built in areas of high 
demand. 

 

Sc.65 Revenue Budget 2018/19 and Capital Programme to 
2022/23  

 
The committee considered the head of finance’s report.  This brought together all 
relevant information to allow Cabinet to recommend to Council a revenue budget for 
2018/19 and a capital programme for 2018/19 to 2022/23.  The Medium Term 
Financial Plan (MFTP) was included, which provided details of the forward budget 
model for the next five years.  The report also recommended the prudential 
indicators to be set by the Council in accordance with ‘the Prudential Code’, 
introduced as part of the Local Government Act 2003.   
 
Councillor Robert Sharp, the Cabinet member for finance, introduced the report. Also 
present to answer questions were William Jacobs, head of finance, Simon Hewings, 
strategic finance manager and Richard Spraggett, chief accountant (Capita). 
 

Councillor Emily Smith had registered to speak at the meeting. In response to her 
questions, it was reported that: 

 Revenue growth bid CSVR1: This was a one-off bid to fund feasibility studies 
and exploratory work on the installation of electric charging points. 

 Revenue growth bid DAHR1: These were the additional costs associated with 
the council hosting the Oxfordshire Growth Board, including support staff. The 
council would be host for 12 months from July 2019, which was why a 
proportion of the cost extended into the following year 

Page 12



Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny Committee minutes  

Thursday, 8 February 2018  Sc.4 

 Capital programme, Abbey Meadows toilet block: Details of this expenditure 
were included in the previous year’s budget. 

 
In response to members’ questions, it was reported that: 

 West Way capital receipt: The West Way receipt had not yet been allocated 
so was funding the capital programme, reducing the borrowing requirement at 
this time. Potential leisure investment projects in the Botley area were under 
review with a report anticipated in 2018/19.  Consideration would also be 
given to a suitable investment opportunity should one arise. 

 Budget adjustment, reduction in West Way rent: The rental income was 
approximately £600,000 p.a. but the budget had already been reduced in the 
previous year to reflect the closure of some units.  The figure for 2018/19 and 
future years reflected the final position following the sale completion.  

 Budget build change CLIR1: A review of ongoing internal IT costs had 
revealed that costs of approximately £111,000 p.a. had been removed 
incorrectly from the budget when the 5 councils’ partnership contract went 
live.  This provision corrected the error. 

 Budget build change CMTR1: This was one-off expenditure to meet the new 
requirements of the General Data Protection Regulations. If the feasibility 
work determined that new IT hardware was required, the additional costs 
would be included in future budgets. 

 Budget build change DAHRE2:  The flexible homelessness grant funding had 
already been received and was in reserves.  The Syrian refugee grant funding 
would be received in 2018/19.  A budget was required in order to spend the 
funding already received. 

 Budget build change CMTR2: The Data Protection Officer post would be 
shared with South Oxfordshire District Council. 

 Budget build change CMTR3: This was the estimated cost of the senior levels 
of the management restructure as agreed by Council and the restructure of 
the client team which was out for consultation at the present time. 

 Budget build change: WLERE4: A bid for an additional £10,000 for tree 
surgery had been included at the request of the head of service. 

 Revenue growth bid LEGR1: This bid had been brought forward to meet the 
ongoing increased demand for external legal support on planning inquiries 
and court and tribunal proceedings, including judicial reviews and appeals. 

 Revenue growth bid PLAR2: The Didcot Garden Town (DGT) grant has 
funded the work of the DGT team to date. This bid covered the costs 
associated with the council, as planning authority, producing a DGT 
Development Plan Document.  If the bid were approved then further details 
could be circulated to members. 

 Revenue growth bid WLER4: This bid would create an in-house team to work 
with parishes to provide improvements to the environment. The bid was in 
response to requests from the parishes. 

 Planning revenue budget bid: This bid related to a specific change in 
Government policy that permitted a 20% increase in planning fees. It was a 
requirement that this increase must deliver additional planning related 
resources so could not be used to offset previously approved expenditure. 

 Appendix D1: Concerns about slippage did not relate directly to the budget 
but rather to the delivery of the capital programme. In response to a previous 

Page 13



Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny Committee minutes  

Thursday, 8 February 2018  Sc.5 

request from the committee, the budget outturn report was to be amended to 
include a column setting out the reasons for the slippage above £50,000 on 
any capital scheme. 

 Staff resources: A growth bid for additional staff resources required to meet 
the requirements of the organisation had been included in the budget. 
 

A member requested that the summaries for growth bids should provide more detail. 
The head of finance reported that the summaries were submitted by the relevant 
head of service. Where summaries were brief this was generally due to the 
information being commercially confidential or proposals being subject to formal 
consultation. 
 
Some members expressed the view that part of the £250,000 p.a. proposed 
expenditure on parish environmental improvements would be better spent on 
implementing the currently unfunded air quality action plan. Accordingly, the 
following motion was moved and seconded. 
 
To recommend that Cabinet reconsiders the revenue growth bid WLER4 and 
reallocates some of the £250,000 p.a. proposed expenditure to implement the air 
quality action plan. 
 
On being put to the vote, the motion was lost. 
 
RESOLVED: To note the draft revenue budget 2018/19 and the capital programme 
to 2022/23. 
 

Sc.66 Work schedule and dates for all South and Vale scrutiny 
meetings  

 
The committee considered its work programme and noted that its meeting scheduled 
for 31 May was likely to be rearranged.  
 

 
 
 
The meeting closed at 9.00 pm 
 
 

Page 14



 Scrutiny Committee 

 
 

Report of Head of Planning 

Author: James Gagg 

Telephone: 07717 271902 

E-mail: james.gagg@southandvale.gov.uk 

Wards affected: All 

 

Cabinet member responsible: Roger Cox 

Tel: 01367 243360 

E-mail: roger.cox@southandvale.gov.uk 

To: Scrutiny 

Date: 14th June 2018 

 

 

OXFORDSHIRE INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY  

Recommendation 

to review the summary of the OXIS study given in this report and raise any queries that 
they may have with officers and the Cabinet Member for Planning 

 

Introduction 
 
1. This report gives information on the Oxfordshire Infrastructure Strategy (OxIS) which 

was undertaken for the Oxfordshire Growth Board in 2016/ 2017, and how the work 
has been used since it was finalised. 

 

Background 
 
2. In 2016, the Oxfordshire Growth Board agreed that an Oxfordshire Infrastructure 

Strategy should be undertaken, which would look at existing and proposed 
infrastructure, linked to planned areas of growth, as set out in adopted or emerging 
Local Plans. It also set out to look beyond our Local Plan period to 2040 and to 
prioritise infrastructure across the County. A brief for this work was endorsed at the 
Growth Board meeting, 26 May 2016, and is given in Appendix 1. 
 

3. The OxIS document helps to evidence and map strategic infrastructure requirements 
for Oxfordshire over the next 15- 25 years and better position partners with information 
on priorities to inform funding and investment discussions across all level of 
Government. It is not a statutory document but provides evidence that can shape and 
influence local plans and service providers. 

CONFIDENTIAL 

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



 
4. In Autumn 2016, consultants AECOM were appointed to undertake the study. The 

project was client managed by the County Council in association with the Growth 
Board Partnership Programme Manager, with an officer steering group set up with 
representatives from the County Council and each of the districts. Officers provided 
regular updates of the study progress with the Cabinet Member for Planning and at key 
milestones with Councillors. Progress updates were also given to the Growth Board, 
including presentations on final draft reports, and press releases and coverage given 
when key outcomes of Stage 2 were published for comment in Summer 2017. 

 
5. AECOM produced a Stage 1 report, published in April 2017, and a Stage 2 report, 

published in November 2017. Both of these reports are available to view on the growth 
board website at the following link: 

 
https://www.oxfordshiregrowthboard.org/projects 

 

Stage 1 Report 
 
6. The Stage 1 report summarises information on the infrastructure situation and likely 

forecast requirements by topic areas, including transport, education, healthcare, 
utilities, waste and flood defences. It also highlights some key schemes, such as 
strategic transport improvements, that have already been identified to support growth 
outlined in local plans until 2031. The report further looks to a timescale of 2040, 
recognising that growth in housing and jobs will continue beyond the current local plan 
periods. This was done through extrapolation of housing growth from the end of current 
plan periods to 2040, based on growth planned to the period to 2031. 
 

7. The report includes sections on housing and employment growth, with mapping of 
committed/ (proposed) allocated sites based on information provided by the districts. It 
also reviews population forecasts for Oxfordshire, which were used to estimate overall 
infrastructure needs by topic areas. The report does not detail infrastructure for 
development sites, which local plans set out in their relevant infrastructure delivery 
plans. The report focuses on overall future infrastructure requirements at a strategic; 
Oxfordshire, level and priorities by topic area. It also reviews likely funding 
requirements for this infrastructure, taking into account secured funding where known. 

 
8. Stage 1 included engagement with infrastructure providers by topic area, which helped 

to inform finalisation of the report. It also helped ensure that the evidence base for the 
report took into account relevant study and policy development for each infrastructure 
area. The section on Healthcare, for example, included assessment of the Oxfordshire 
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) and the developing Oxfordshire Healthcare 
Transformation Programme. The section on electricity included analysis of a feasibility 
study on network constraints and proposed improvements needed to support growth 
undertaken by Scottish and Southern Energy (SSE), the Distribution Network Operator 
(DNO) for the area. 

 

Stage 2 work 
 
9. Stage 2 of the work classified schemes identified through the Stage 1 work into 

regional, countywide and local infrastructure, summarising local schemes into several 
identified growth corridors. These corridors are shown in Appendix 2, and for the Vale 
this includes the Knowledge Spine South area, which covers Abingdon and the 

Page 16



Science Vale area, and the A420 corridor. Several schemes which are expected to 
have impact over a wider area are also identified in a regional or countywide list. For 
the regional list, this includes the proposed new station at Grove and associated new 
rail service. For the countywide list, this includes the proposed new road crossing of the 
River Thames between Culham and Didcot, Didcot Science Bridge, and the proposed 
new Park and Rides at Lodge Hill north of Abingdon and at Cumnor. 

 
10. All identified strategic infrastructure schemes were appraised against a common set of 

criteria, giving each an overall score. They were also split into topic areas, in particular 
transport, education, health and social care, green infrastructure, energy, water, waste 
and flood defences. The criteria for assessment of schemes was discussed in detail 
and agreed at the district/ county officer reference group. In summary, the criteria were: 

 

 Growth: Level of homes and jobs supported 

 Deliverability: Level of commitment, complexity of delivery, level of inter- 
relationships 

 Associated impacts: Social benefits, environmental benefits  
 

11. Each infrastructure scheme was given a score, based on the level of positive impact 
they had against each criteria. The appraisal was also weighted, with higher possible 
scores for level of homes and jobs supported, recognising the importance of the link to 
economic and housing growth. The criteria scores were totalled to give an overall score 
for each infrastructure scheme. A full list of criteria and the scoring within these criteria 
are given in Appendix 3. 

 
12. The outcome of the scoring and assessment exercise is shown in the Stage 2 report, 

and includes for each identified corridor a list of expected larger housing and 
employment sites, as of mid-2017. The results of the assessment of schemes within 
the Knowledge Spine South and A420 Corridors are given in Appendix 4. It is noted 
that for schemes in these areas, and for those schemes identified as having 
countywide impact, it is generally the transport schemes that score better against the 
criteria assessment. 
 

13.  Stage 2 work also included a number of stakeholder engagement exercises. This 
included: 
 

 A full day workshop split into four working sessions covering transport, utilities, 
green infrastructure and social infrastructure. 

 A half day drop in event at Said Business School, presenting findings of the Stage 
2 report in September 2017. Attendees included representatives from 
environmental, business and infrastructure organisations. 

 An opportunity for any interested parties to submit comments on a summary of key 
findings from the Stage 2 work over an 8 week period from July to September 
2017, as highlighted to South and Vale councillors through In-focus updates in 
August. 

 
14. The Stage 2 OXIS report was considered and endorsed by the Growth Board (subject 

to finalisation, including taking into account consultation responses in full) at its meeting 
in September 2017. The board also agreed that OXIS should be periodically updated. 
The final report was then published in November 2017, with some minor amendments 
made following full consideration of consultation responses received between July and 
September. 

Page 17



Use of OXIS 
 
15. OXIS has provided a useful way of bringing together and appraising the benefits of key 

strategic infrastructure schemes and summarising them by area against expected 
growth. It has also helped in identifying those schemes put forward for external funding, 
in particular as part of the Oxfordshire Growth Deal and Housing Infrastructure Fund 
bids. For example, several key transport schemes within the Garden Town area were 
able to easily be identified as priorities for the HIF forward funding expression of 
interest bid (submitted in October 2017), based the OXIS work. 

 
16. However, OXIS does not replace the requirement for each district to produce 

Infrastructure Delivery Plans (IDPs) to identify in more detail that infrastructure needed 
to support development identified in Local Plans. In particular, it is seen as a strategic, 
Oxfordshire wide document and as such does not give detail on infrastructure schemes 
linked to each proposed development. 

 
17. It is also noted that the assessment of schemes is very much based on a certain 

moment in time, and that planned growth, associated infrastructure priorities, policy 
and evidence base in different infrastructure areas can clearly change. For example, 
once central government has decided on the corridor and then route of the Oxford to 
Cambridge Expressway (OxCam) this is likely to have significant implications on both 
the direction of future growth, and how transport networks around Oxfordshire develop. 
It is therefore seen as important that OXIS is updated in due course to take into 
account of such major changes in circumstances. 

 
18. It is also important that the evidence underpinning the OXIS report is considered in 

future planning policy development, and that any updates to OXIS consider the latest 
local plan positions across Oxfordshire. There will in particular, be linkages with 
development of the Joint Statutory Spatial Plan (JSSP) that will need to be carefully 
reviewed.  

 
19. At present, it is proposed that OXIS is updated in draft by the end of 2018, with a final 

version produced in Spring 2019. However, these timescales have yet to be fully 
agreed by the Growth Board partners. It is expected that the Vale would be 
appropriately engaged in any update process. 

 

Finance 
 
20. The budget for this work was covered in contributions of £21,500 per council (total 

£129,500), which for Vale was part of our annual Growth Board contribution. Any 
updates would be expected to be similarly funded, subject to the appropriate budget 
sign-off processes. 

 

Conclusion 
 
21. This report gives an overview of the OXIS work undertaken to date, and how it has 

been used to help prioritise schemes for funding. In line with the recommendations of 
the Growth Board, it is expected that an update will be valuable within the next year as 
JSSP progresses and we know more about OXCam.  
 
 

Page 18



Recommendation 
 

22. Scrutiny is asked to review the summary of the OXIS study given in this report and 
raise any queries they may have with officers and the Cabinet Member for Planning.  

 

Appendices: 
 
Appendix 1. Growth Board agreed brief for the OxIS 
Appendix 2. Growth corridors for Oxfordshire identified in OXIS report 
Appendix 3. OXIS summary table of criteria used for scheme prioritisation 
Appendix 4: List of schemes for the Knowledge Spine South and A420 Corridor 
 

 

Page 19



APPENDIX 1 
 
Growth Board 26th May 2016 
Contact: Bev Hindle   
E- mail   Bev.hindle@oxfordshire.gov.uk 
 

 
 

Oxfordshire Infrastructure Strategy Brief 

1.0 Recommendation 

The Growth Board is asked to: 

1.1 Agree the attached brief for an Infrastructure Strategy for Oxfordshire  

2.0 Background 

2.1 At its meeting on 31 March 2016, the Growth Board noted within the work 

programme that the Executive Officer Group (EOG) had supported the development 

of an Infrastructure Strategy for Oxfordshire and that detailed project scoping should 

be prepared for Growth Board in May for approval.  

2.2 Officers subsequently prepared a brief for the development of the strategy and this 

document was endorsed by the EOG on 12 May and is attached for approval by the 

Growth Board. 

3.0 Matters for consideration  

3.1 The brief seeks to build on work and structures already in place and in particular the 

activity associated with delivering the post Strategic Housing Market Assessment 

programme. The intention within the brief is that the infrastructure strategy should 

be designed to be able to fully integrate with the proposed development of sub-

national planning for the Economic Heart of England Alliance.  The advantage of 

doing this is to put Oxfordshire in the best position possible to ensure that its 

interests are explicit, up to date and presented in a way that is relevant to that 

regional work and with the most potential to influence its outcomes. 

3.2 It is proposed that the final output is developed and maintained as a live document 

that evolves as the reality of local development becomes understood and as national 

and regional plans are further progressed. In this way the document will continue to 

address the core infrastructure challenges faced by authorities and communities and 

provide a solid evidence base and agreed platform into the future for funding bids 

and strategic planning.   

3.3 The brief proposes that the development of the strategy is supported with an open 

public consultation process to help facilitate a more informed dialogue with 

communities, developers and stakeholders on the impact of growth and related 

infrastructure priorities.    

3.4 In addition to participation from all partners managed through a joint officer working 

group, preparing the strategy itself will require a significant external commission to 

provide specific technical capabilities and capacity. The draft brief assumes a 

resource base set at £120,000, representing a contribution of £20,000 per partner 

authority as agreed in principle through the Executive Officer Group in March.    

Page 20



Draft Oxfordshire Infrastructure Strategy Brief  

 

1 Introduction 

1.1 Oxfordshire is at the forefront of a revolution in growth.  It has around 30,000 

businesses, providing over 380,000 jobs, including a high proportion in research, science 

and technology, engineering, and high-tech manufacturing.  The county’s economy is 

recognised as one of the best performing in the UK and its contribution to the national 

economy is well above average - workplace Gross Value Added per head in Oxfordshire 

averaged over £30,000 in 2014, compared to the UK average of around £25,000.   Some 

85,000 additional jobs are forecast to be created in Oxfordshire by 2031. 

 

1.2 Oxfordshire therefore has a strong reputation nationally and internationally as an engine 

for growth – illustrated by: 

- The development of the ‘Knowledge Spine’ concept, the growth corridor linking 

Bicester, Oxford and Science Vale, recognising Oxfordshire as a centre for science 

and innovation; much of this employment is located on this corridor 

- Designation within this of both Bicester and Didcot as Garden Towns, with significant 

growth happening and proposed; 

- The County’s strategic position at both a North/South and East/West Crossroads, 

including on the Oxford-Milton Keynes-Cambridge growth arc - and its associated 

national infrastructure projects, notably East West Rail and the Oxford to Cambridge 

Expressway.  

 

1.3 An Oxfordshire Growth Board has been established, comprising all Oxfordshire Local 

Authorities (County Council and 5 District Councils) plus the Oxfordshire LEP.   This has 

established the growth ambition through publication of the Oxfordshire Strategic 

Housing Market Assessment (SHMA), which has identified the need for around 100,000 

new homes in Oxfordshire by 2031.  These are being taken forward through joint 

working across authorities and ultimately District Council Local Plans.  Initial work is 

focusing on the spatial options to accommodate Oxford’s unmet housing need, which 

has included a strong element of infrastructure planning. 

 

1.4 Housing and jobs forecasts are embedded in the Oxfordshire Strategic Economic Plan 

(SEP) which has recently been updated and is out to consultation. 

 

1.5 Committed and Planned Growth over the next 15-20 years has been established and 

mapped, with a documented schedule of envisaged infrastructure requirements and 

committed / potential funding.  This builds on the infrastructure and growth mapping 

undertaken to date and is being regularly updated.  This is illustrated at countywide level 

in annex 1.  This will be updated as decisions about where additional growth and 

supporting infrastructure should be located are made. 

Page 21



 

1.6 This work needs to be broadened in its scope and developed into a comprehensive 

Oxfordshire Infrastructure Strategy to pick up wider strategic infrastructure requirements, 

constraints and opportunities, of the county and beyond, and refined to ensure the 

evidence needed for such infrastructure is clear.  

 

1.7 It is also the intention that the OxIS will be linked with a wider infrastructure strategy 

covering Oxfordshire and neighbouring authorities that form part of England’s Economic 

Heartland Alliance, which Oxfordshire is a key member of alongside Buckinghamshire, 

Northamptonshire and other local authority partners. It will sit within the wider National 

Framework (a National Infrastructure Commission focus, which has flagged Oxford to 

Cambridge as a priority corridor with significant further economic potential). 

 

1.8 The OxIS will look at ambitions and projects long term to 2040, so will extend beyond 

current Local Plan and Local Transport Plan timescales to reflect the delivery timescales 

of a number of planned and potential strategic infrastructure improvements. 

 

 

2 Oxfordshire Growth & Infrastructure Context 

 

2.1 A significant benefit and risk for delivering growth is the timely delivery of infrastructure.   

While attitudes toward growth are varied, there is consistent support for the principle 

that if we must have growth we must have the necessary infrastructure provided in a 

timely way to support that growth and benefit new and existing communities and 

continue to develop Oxfordshire as an attractive and vibrant place to live and work.  

 

2.2 As local authorities we have statutory responsibility for the delivery and maintenance of 

specific elements of strategic infrastructure – notably transport, schools and waste 

management, but also in helping to secure more local community-based infrastructure 

such as open space and leisure facilities. 

 

2.3 Increasingly, we need to clearly identify what other infrastructure developed and 

provided by other parties is needed to enable and support planned growth - rail, 

electricity, water and sewerage, health facilities, broadband etc. - and plan for other 

forms of infrastructure which mitigate potentially harmful effects of development such 

as flood alleviation and environmental management.  

 

2.4 It is also in our long –term financial interests to ensure delivery of infrastructure 

supports growth and development in a way which manages and helps to control future 

demand on public services – through efficient and appropriate provision of schools and 

health facilities for example - and does not trigger requirement for costly new 

infrastructure or expensive service delivery models which cannot be funded.  

Page 22



2.5 Currently, Infrastructure Delivery Plans are developed alongside Local Plans to ensure 

that, as far as possible, decisions on forward planning are taking account of the 

infrastructure needs of the area.  However, this tends to be a derived product: the 

growth options are identified through land availability assessments, sustainability 

appraisal tests sites alongside deliverability, and viability testing and preferred sites 

emerge: only then is the infrastructure needed to support these sites identified and 

tested.  We need to do more to look at our infrastructure supply and demand as an 

opportunity to inform growth in terms of its location, scale and type and to seek to 

maximise the benefit and minimise the strain on infrastructure provision. 

 

 

3 What is the Oxfordshire Infrastructure Strategy? 

 

3.1 The OxIS will identify, map and prioritise our infrastructure requirements to 2040 under 

the following key themes: 

 

 Transport 

 Education 

 Health services 

 Other strategic community and environmental infrastructure e.g. waste 
management 

 Energy & Utilities 

 Flooding & Water management 

 Broadband & Connectivity 

 Green Infrastructure 
 

3.2 The OxIS is not a statutory policy document, but is aimed at shaping and influencing key 

documents such as Local Plans and service providers’ investment strategies, and enable 

the Oxfordshire Growth Board and its members to use that information to: 

 

 make better informed choices of where growth should go; 

 seek agreed prioritisation of delivery, including priorities between different forms 

of infrastructure; 

 maximise capacity to meet demand; 

 better position ourselves with government, selling the Oxfordshire ‘brand’ 

(within the wider EEH context) and to demonstrate how Oxfordshire will be an 

attractive place for business and developers to invest with confidence 

 increase our business case success for external funding and streamline strategic 

developer funding negotiations; 

 facilitate informed dialogue with communities, developers and our main  

stakeholders on the impact of growth   

 

Page 23



3.3 More specifically, the OxIS will set out the ambition, informed by facts, for the planned 

infrastructure provision and growth priorities for Oxfordshire over the next 25 years.  As a 

live document that is intended to be updated periodically alongside the SEP, it would: 

 

 build on existing commitments, strategies and current planning horizons, e.g. LTP4, 

SEP and Local Plans, enabling Oxfordshire authorities and the LEP, working together 

through the Growth Board, to  identify and prioritise strategic infrastructure needs 

and plans to meet Oxfordshire’s future employment and housing growth, in the 

context of an overall spatial planning and infrastructure provision approach that 

clearly sets out and maximises the benefits and opportunities for Oxfordshire; 

 

 encourage innovative and cost-effective approaches to infrastructure delivery, 

introducing new technologies or demand management approaches to make the 

most of existing infrastructure and low maintenance solutions to reduce revenue 

burdens in future; 

 

 seek to identify various funding approaches available or possible to unlock timely 

delivery of infrastructure;  

 

 contain a prioritised, costed programme of infrastructure projects that Oxfordshire 

authorities and other strategic infrastructure providers (e.g. Network Rail, Highways 

England, Environment Agency) consider necessary to meet the demands of 

Oxfordshire’s growth to 2040; 

 

 seek out opportunities for joined up delivery to inform future Local Plans, the SEP 

and Stakeholders / the public where and how infrastructure can help shape and 

deliver planned growth, maximised for public benefit and sustainability; 

 

 provide a strategic context for current devolution proposals and for Oxfordshire’s 

involvement in broader sub-national planning initiatives;  

 

 include supply and demand mapping, in order to provide an effective evidence base 

for emerging Local Plans, the refreshed SEP, capital programmes, third party 

investment proposals and other funding streams (e.g. Local Growth Fund); 

 

 create a common platform for all infrastructure providers to outline their 

investment plans for the future and support the business cases for these proposals.  

  

Page 24



3.4 The OxIS will add further value by not only mapping out, identifying and refining 

infrastructure requirements but to also use that information to provide:  
 

 a transparent, interactive, common strategic evidence base, to enable better 

informed choices of where growth should go, for all Local Planning Authorities and 

infrastructure providers, delivered through shared resources and expertise across 

the Growth Board partners.  Using open data will also encourage active applications 

development and invite approaches to take into account the constraints and 

capacity/demand issues we face;  

 

 a coherent strategic context for local plans, helping to evidence cooperation across 

Oxfordshire to  secure long term investor confidence and providing a shared basis for 

developer negotiations.  Local authorities will be able to ensure that ambitious 

housing targets can be met and that new homes and jobs are delivered in the most 

suitable and sustainable locations, supported by the necessary infrastructure;  

 

 the context, evidence and the process for agreement on an infrastructure delivery 

programme for Oxfordshire.  The Growth Board will agree this strategy and keep it 

under regular review to ensure it is clear on its delivery success and that new 

opportunities or issues are being addressed in a flexible and timely way;  

 

 agreed prioritisation of delivery, including priorities between different forms of 

infrastructure, through a forum and process for agreeing and coordinating the 

strategic infrastructure priorities for Oxfordshire, without taking away any decision-

making responsibility from individual authorities; 

 

 a mechanism to feed Oxfordshire priorities into the infrastructure strategy for 

England’s Economic Heartland Alliance;   

 

 a common platform to strengthen our approach to business case development and  

increase success for seeking external funding either from new development or 

external sources including devolution, Local Growth Fund or in lobbying for national 

infrastructure funding through Road or Rail Investment Strategies;  

 

 Infrastructure to be planned and developed in a more transparent and 

understandable way, in terms of public and Stakeholder awareness, engagement and 

consultation.  

  

Page 25



4.  Project Scope, Specification, Requirements and Phasing 

 

4.1 The Project Team (consisting of Oxfordshire cross-authority officers and consultancy 

support as required) would focus on the main areas of strategic infrastructure provision 

outlined in paragraph 3.1 above, to:  

 

 Produce the overall Oxfordshire Infrastructure Strategy; 

 Coordinate input to the Strategy from Oxfordshire Authorities 

 Provide specialist advice to advise on major investment strategies in non-

authority infrastructure sectors (energy, water, sewerage, health); 

 Undertake or commission any required infrastructure survey work i.e. where 

existing up to date data does not exist in accessible formats; 

 Devise and undertake a public and stakeholder consultation process 

 Develop and refine a delivery prioritisation process. 

 Develop a platform to make this accessible – i.e. an interactive mapping element 

to bring the strategy to life and act as a mechanism to attract funding/enable 

investment in projects 

 

4.2 The OxIS should be prepared in line with, but without limitation to the NPPF and PPG: 

the strategy would add value in relation to strategic priorities rather than duplicate 

District Council Infrastructure Delivery Plans.  It should consider best practice from 

elsewhere, including any similar strategic infrastructure plans which have been 

developed by other authorities similar to that proposed. 

 

4.3 The project is proposed to be undertaken in two phases: 

  

1) Stage 1 – continue to map out all known infrastructure planned or required, 

including a risk matrix for delivery of such infrastructure within the strategy period.  

Estimates of total cost will be included in this stage; the outcome will be a draft 

strategy document, for public and stakeholder consultation. 

 

2) Stage 2 – Reporting back on consultation, including proposed changes, and strategy 

finalisation.  This will include development of a prioritisation methodology and an 

assessment approach /tool which reflects local and wider benefits, including 

understanding the priorities of local communities, and an action plan and 

programme for infrastructure delivery linked to planned and potential growth. 

 

4.4 The required project outputs are envisaged as being: 

 

 A strategy document, comprising a robust strategy and prioritised delivery plan, 

which incorporates committed and proposed development and sets out the 

existing/proposed/potential infrastructure required to support it;  

Page 26



 A clear, interactive map-based approach with supporting narrative – extending 

the map-based approach already developed to support Oxfordshire devolution 

proposals to date; 

 Identification of each key infrastructure project to be included both in the 
strategy document and on maps by:  
- time period (e.g. committed/short term/medium term/long term) 
- housing and employment development it would directly support 
- projected costs and funding sources 
- delivery partners 
- interdependencies  

 Consultation materials - including a website and other materials, together 
with a report summarising the outcome of consultation. 

 
 
5. Governance and Project Management 
 

5.1 The Project will be commissioned and owned by the Oxfordshire Growth Board, which 

meets quarterly and facilitates cross-authority buy-in and engagement from key partners 

– including the LEP, Environment Agency, HCA, etc. 

5.2 The progress of the OxIS would have Executive Officer Group oversight, supported and 

monitored by a cross-authority project team likely to be similar to the one which has 

overseen the SHMA process and subsequent “Post SHMA” workstreams. 

5.3 Oxfordshire County Council is proposed to act as lead authority in terms of consultant 

procurement and contract / project management.  Any appointed consultant(s) will be 

expected to be procured and appointed via an appropriate framework.  They would work 

closely with the Project Group, client Project Manager and lead officers, via a single point 

of contact. 

 

6. Budget and Resources 

 

6.1 A project budget ceiling of £120,000 (maximum £20,000 from each authority) has been 

agreed for this work, to cover: 

- Production of the required outputs identified in para 4.4 

- Consultation and engagement 

- Liaison with all authorities, partners and other infrastructure providers 

- All consultancy costs and expenses including appropriate project contingency 

 

6.2 Drawing in partner staff resources, as well as consultancy support, will also need to be 

considered.  As examples, this could cover: programme management, specialist technical 

disciplines and communications and media support  

Page 27



7. Timetable 

 

7.1 A detailed project plan will be agreed once the resource proposal to support this project has been 

worked through in greater detail and been agreed.  On the assumption that a consultant would 

be appointed, an indicative six-month project timetable is envisaged, with key 

milestones/deadlines as follows: 

 

Milestone Deadline 

Consultancy Brief Issued for Expressions of Interest June 2016 

Formal Tendering and assessment  June-July 2016 

Contract Award signed off by Growth Board 25 July 2016 

Stage 1 1 August-October 2016 

Consultation October-November 2016 

Stage 1 Strategy signed off by Growth Board  30 November 2016 

Stage 2 Delivery & Prioritisation  December 2016 –January 2017 

Stage 2 Completion and sign off by Growth Board  31st January 2017 

 

 

 

 

 

Version 5 - 06/05/2016 

Page 28



 
 
Appendix 2: Growth Corridor Map 
 

 
 
 
  

Page 29



Appendix 3: OXIS summary table of criteria used for scheme prioritisation: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 30



Appendix 4 
 
Outcomes of Corridor Assessment: Vale of White Horse Corridors 
 

a) Knowledge Spine South 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 31



a) A420 Corridor 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Page 32



 

Scrutiny Committee 
 

  
Report of Head of Development and Regeneration 

Author: Melanie Smans 

Telephone: 01235 422201 

Textphone: 18001 01235 422201 

E-mail: melanie.smans@southandvale.gov.uk 

Executive member responsible: Cllr Mike Murray 

Tel: 01235 834125 

E-mail: michael.murray@whitehorsedc.gov.uk 

To: Scrutiny committee 

DATE: 14 June 2018 

 

 

 

Business and Innovation Strategy 

Action Plan 2017 to 2020 Update 

Recommendation(s) 

1. The committee is invited to: 

 comment upon the delivery to 31 March 2018 of the Business and Innovation 
Strategy Action Plan 2017 to 2020. 

 make recommendations to the cabinet in respect of monitoring of the delivery 
and frequency of monitoring reports in respect of the Business and Innovation 
Strategy Action Plan 2017 to 2020. 

 

Purpose of Report 

1. To provide an update on the delivery of the Business and Innovation Strategy Action 
Plan 2017 to 2020. 

Strategic Objectives  

2. The Vale of White Horse District Council Corporate Plan 2016-2020 includes the 
strategic objectives to, “create the right conditions for economic growth, so that 
businesses, residents and workers can prosper”, “optimise employment opportunities”, 
“support tourism in the Vale”, and “ensure the success of our town centres”. 

Background 

3. In 2015 the South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse district councils recognised the 
need to build stronger relationships with all local businesses and support their 
growth. To achieve this, the councils needed to gain a better understanding of the 
districts' small and medium enterprises (SMEs) and their priorities.  

CONFIDENTIAL 

Page 33

Agenda Item 7



DRAFT 

 

 

4. Lichfields were appointed to prepare a Business and Innovation Strategy (BIS) which 
analyses the SMEs in the district and recommends a series of practical steps to 
maximise the impact of the councils’ business support interventions from 2016 to 2020. 

5. The SME BIS Final Report (March 2017) identifies the vital role that the 5,740 SMEs 
play in the Vale economy and the need refocus the council’s activity on providing 
support to all Vale SMEs, including market town centre SMEs. The report is available 
on the Vale4Business website (http://www.vale4business.com/bis-action-plan/).  

6. In the Vale, most businesses employ less than nine employees and only three per cent 
of businesses employ more than 50 employees. For this reason, the report highlights 
the pivotal role the council and partners play in helping the zero, micro and small 
businesses in the district to overcome four key barriers to growth: business support, 
skills and labour force, infrastructure and planning and business space. 

 
 
7. The economic development team used the BIS recommendations to develop the Action 

Plan 2017 to 2020 which outlines how the council will remove the key barriers and 
support business growth. It is also an easy to understand overview of the council’s 
support for all Vale businesses (both town centre and non-town centre) and partners. 

8. The development and delivery of the BIS and action plan were funded from an 
approved growth bid within the economic development budget so no 
formal approval was determined necessary in relation to production of the strategy or 
action plan. 

9. The discussion below reports on the delivery of the BIS Action Plan as at 31 March 
2018. 

Progress of BIS Action Plan 2017 to 2020 
 
10.  Of the 20 actions, 19 are on track or completed. The action ‘Proactively promote SME 

career opportunities’ will be progressed over the next six months. After the success of 
the Jobs Fair in Abingdon, it is clear that partnering with Aspire and similar 

Page 34

http://www.vale4business.com/bis-action-plan/


DRAFT 

 

 

organisations is an effective way to promote SME career opportunities to the untapped 
workforce –for example, ex-military, ex-offenders, refugees and disabled communities. 

 
 
 
Key Successes 
 
11. Over the last year, there have been many successes that have positively impacted 

local businesses and increase awareness of the council’s support for business. These 
include: 

Page 35



DRAFT 

 

 

 from March 2017 to March 2018, business engagement has increased from 
approximately five per cent of businesses to approximately 15 per cent. This 
includes: 

o 21 new Twitter followers each month 
o Twitter impressions increased from 5,000 in January 2017 to 59,000 in 

March 2018 
o Twitter profile visits increased from 279 in January 2017 to 1,267 in March 

2018 
o on average between 250 and 700 people view LinkedIn posts, with the most 

popular being viewed by more than 2,000 people 
o newsletter open rates increased from 24.7 per cent in February 2017 to 35.4 

per cent in March 2018. The industry average is 26.06 per cent 
o the percentage of new website visitors has increased to approximately 75 

per cent of total visitors each month 
o 285 visits in a day to the website following the Vale4Busines awards 

 since January 2018 eight events were held across the district. These were well 
attended with five at full capacity 

 the business breakfast was very well received with 100 per cent of respondents 
being ‘likely’ or ‘very likely’ to attend future events 

 46 applications were received for the V4B Awards. Winners were announced at the 
awards ceremony which was attended by 200 people and received county-wide 
media coverage. 

 due to the strengthened relationship with OxLEP, the team has been invited to 
support the Department of International Trade (DIT) and is actively leading the 
engagement of two foreign businesses in the district 

 from 1 January to 31 March 2018, 35 new businesses sought support from the team 

 From 1 January to 31 March 2018, 166 new businesses were incorporated 

 the team led the development of Community Employment Plans for the Crab Hill 
(Wantage) and North Abingdon developments 

 the team partnered with the Oxford University Student Consultancy group to review 
the team’s communication strategy 

 OxLEP skills (O2i) asked the team to be the Enterprise Advisors for Kingfisher 
School (Abingdon) and Matthew Arnold (Botley) 

 supported the neighbourhood planning process by working with the North Hinksey 
Neighbourhood Plan Economy Group and the Stanford in the Vale committee to 
determine the need for employment space in the area 

 as at 10 April 2018, more than 96 per cent of the district had access to superfast 
broadband 

 from 1 January to 31 March 2018, the team received 13 new enquiries about 
available business space in the district. 
 

12.  The remainder of the paper outlines the delivery of the actions under the four action 
plan themes of business support, skills and labour force, infrastructure and planning 
and business space. 

Business Support 
 

13. The council’s economic development team supports all Vale businesses via the 
Vale4Business brand which has a dedicated website and social media platforms. 

Page 36



DRAFT 

 

 

14. A key finding of the BIS Final Report (March 2017) was the lack of general awareness 
of available business support. A recommendation was to use social media to increase 
awareness of the Vale4Business brand and signpost available support. 

15. The economic development team manages the Vale4Business website, Twitter, 
LinkedIn and newsletter. Across these platforms, the team directly engages 
approximately 15 per cent of the businesses located in the Vale (a 10 per cent increase 
in 12 months). 

Twitter 
16. Twitter is a social media platform where users can post short messages or updates 

(tweets) that are automatically seen by their followers and people who search for key 
word tweets (e.g. ‘business’, ‘Abingdon’, ‘Harwell’). 

17. Since January 2017 the team has focused on increasing the quality and number of the 
followers and tweets. This has been achieved by tweeting updates about the work of 
the team, for example ‘Looking forward to meeting the Wantage Chamber to discuss 
support available’ or ‘Join us at the 2018 Business Breakfast’; local success stories, for 
example ‘Grove Business Park relaunched and space is available’; or signposting 
support, for example, ‘OBS Elevate Grants are now open’. This approach has seen a 
great increase in awareness of the Vale4Business brand and the available support. 

18. Twitter allows people to ‘follow’ others and see their tweets. The number of new 
Vale4Business followers has increased each month with an average of 21 new 
followers per month. 

 

  
 

 
 
19. ‘Impressions’ refer to the number of times a tweet is shown on the Twitter platform. The 

greater the number of impressions, the greater the brand awareness. The number of 
impressions has significantly increased from 5,000 in January 2017 to 59,000 in March 
2018. This demonstrates the growing local and national awareness of the 
Vale4Business brand. 

Page 37



DRAFT 

 

 

 
 

 
 
20. ‘Profile visits’ refers to the number of times a person looks at the Vale4Business profile 

on Twitter. This has steadily increased from 279 visits in January 2017 to 1,267 in 
March 2018. Combined with the increase in followers and impressions, this shows that 
the social media presence and awareness of Vale4Business is increasing. The next 
step is to actively engage these viewers. See appendix one for other Twitter statistics 
for January to March 2018. 

 

 
 
 
 

LinkedIn 
21. LinkedIn is a social media platform specifically for business. It works similarly to 

Facebook but is purely for businesses to share information and network with other 
professionals. Vale4Business has a page and individual team members also have 
pages. Information posted on the Vale4Business page is shared by the team members 
on their pages to increase awareness. For example, the newsletter is promoted on the 
Vale4Business page, and this is shared by the team members. 

Page 38



DRAFT 

 

 

22. In March 2018, there were 64 members of the Vale4Business page. There this a 
combined 650 unique followers of the individual team members. This means each post 
has the potential to be seen by over 700 unique individuals. As posts can be shared, 
on average between 250 and 700 people see the posts, with the most popular being 
viewed by more than 2,000 people. For example, a post about skills was seen by 1,964 
people across the country: 

 
In 48 hours, a post about the Vale4Business workshop in Botley was seen by 772 
people across the country.  

Page 39



DRAFT 

 

 

Newsletter 
23. The newsletter is a key method for communicating with businesses. A key action of the 

BIS Action Plan is to re-launch Vale4Business. This included the re-launch of the 
newsletter in May 2017. The format and content was re-branded to be more 
professional and engaging while distribution changed from monthly to fortnightly. The 
changes were made following feedback from businesses. This re-launch and change 
has seen a positive increase in open rates and subscribers (see appendix two: 
example newsletter). 

24. The open rate is the percentage of subscribers who open the email and read the 
newsletter. The industry average is 26.06 per cent. In February 2017, the open rate 
was 24.7 per cent. In March 2018, this increased to 35.4 per cent. As the newsletter is 
sent on a Monday morning, open rates decease on bank holidays and during summer 
holidays. Apart from the summer holidays the open rate has consistently been higher 
than the industry average. 

 
 
25. The number of subscribers has increased since the change to fortnightly distribution. In 

February 2017 there were 314 subscribers. After the change, subscribers steadily 
increased to the high of 368 in March 2018. 

 

Page 40



DRAFT 

 

 

Website 
26. The website was relaunched in May 2017, having being updated to reflect the BIS 

Action Plan 2017 to 2020 themes. This includes adding dedicated pages for events, 
business space, broadband, and the ambassadors. Statistics are available from 
October 2017. 

27. Since October 2017, the percentage of new visitors has increased to approximately 75 
per cent of total visitors per month. Most visited the Awards page, indicating that the 
Awards are a positive engagement tool. 

 
 

28. Despite the drop in the number of pages viewed during the Christmas holiday period, 
there has been a steady increase in 2018 with 4544 pages viewed in March 2018. Most 
visitors viewed the homepage and then ‘support for business’, ‘news and events’, or 
the Awards pages. Returning visitors tend to visit more pages and stay for longer than 
new visitors. This suggests that once people visit the site, they return as they find it 
useful.  

 
 
 

 
 

Page 41



DRAFT 

 

 

Events  
29. The team has delivered the action ‘create a full year programme of workshops and 

events on relevant business support topics’. Venues, speakers and topics are 
informed by feedback from businesses. Events are attended mostly by South and 
Vale based businesses but growing numbers of attendees are from greater 
Oxfordshire and Berkshire. Since January 2018, eight events have been held 
across the district. These were well attend with five at full capacity. 

 
 
30. The business breakfast was very well received with 100 per cent of respondents 

being ‘likely’ or ‘very likely’ to attend future events. Feedback from attendees 
continues to be very positive: 

 “Great presentations! A longer session would be good” 

 “Always fascinating to discover what is happening in our area. Excellent 
speakers with very interesting topics. Useful to get info pack with future 
events/activities” 

 “I am very happy with this workshop. It is the first workshop that I have 
attended”  

 “It's always a very broad mix of people and organisations attending, and they 
are mostly people who also want to network. It draws from a wider area than 
many networking events.” 

 
V4B Awards 
31. To increase business engagement, the inaugural Vale4Business Awards were held 

in 2017/2018. Based on best practice and advice from the organisers of the West 
Oxfordshire Business Awards (WOBAs), Oxford Business Awards (OBAs) and 
Cherwell Business Awards, it was decided that businesses would be celebrated in 
nine award categories. Applications opened October 2017 and closed February 
2018, resulting in 46 applications. A finalist announcement evening was held on 9 
March 2018 at the Crown and Thistle, Abingdon. Attended by 40 people, it was 
well received and promoted on social media.  

 
 

Page 42



DRAFT 

 

 

32. The awards ceremony was held on 18 May 2018 at the Williams Conference 
Centre (see appendix three). The evening was a fantastic opportunity to showcase 
the best of the Vale businesses and provided networking opportunities for the 200 
attendees. Business and Innovation magazine was the ceremony media partner 
and provided county-wide promotion of the awards and finalists. The winners will 
feature in Vale4Business communications during the coming year and participate 
in workshops to further increase engagement. 

33. Corporate sponsorship was secured for each award and key support functions 
(photography, media, design and printing). The sponsors have actively engaged 
with the award programme: judging and visiting finalists, promoting the awards, 
and promoting Vale4Business services. Through this process, the team has 
strengthened relationships with the sponsors who are now key advocates for the 
work of the team and support available for businesses. Due to their positive 
experience, sponsors have already committed to supporting the 2018/2019 
awards, if held.  

34. The awards programme has been a wonderful platform to increase engagement 
with businesses throughout the district and awareness of the support available.  

V4B Ambassadors 
35. The BIS Action Plan includes the creation of an ambassador programme. The 

ambassadors share the vision to strengthen the Vale’s economic vitality and 
feedback what the council can change or seek to influence to improve the business 
environment. A team of volunteer ambassadors were recruited via an expression 
of interest and represent the varied sectors and businesses in the Vale: 

 Sarah Allen-Stevens, Managing Director, Wicklesham Commercial Properties 

 Belinda Elliot, Managing Director, Bluestream Recruitment 

 Paulette Elliott, Managing Director, Huduma Ltd 

 Steve Head, Director, Shush Ltd 

 Dianne Heath, Centre Director, Harwell and Culham Innovation Centres 

 Richard Snow, founder member and CEO of Oxford Wood Recycling  

 Louise Wheeler, Founder and Director, Research Oxford 

 David Williams, Partner, Bidwells 
Ambassadors share their expertise by being involved in workshops, business forums 
and as sponsors and judges of the V4B Awards. 
 
Business database and engagement 
36. A key action of the BIS Action Plan 2017 to 2020 is to improve and monitor 

business engagement through use of a customer relationship management (CRM) 
system and a business database. A CRM is a database that records contact 
details of businesses and notes from emails or meetings with the businesses. 

37. In August 2017, the team procured a subscription to Tractivity CRM. Tractivity is a 
market leader and offers an economic development-specific CRM that is used by 
public economic development teams across the UK and Europe. The CRM has 
been designed and proven to support local authorities to improve business 
intelligence, enquiry handling, and e-communications: all key actions from the BIS.  

38. The team also procured the MINT database which is used to find out up-to-date 
information and contact details about businesses – what they do, who runs them, 
how successful they are and their structure. MINT also has the function to keep the 
team's data up-to-date. Together, Tractivity and MINT will provide reports on the 

Page 43



DRAFT 

 

 

number and type of new businesses each quarter, the increase in the district’s 
GDP, and ownership details of businesses. For example, there were 
166 businesses incorporated in the Vale from 1 January to 31 March 2018 (see 
appendix four).  

39. The CRM allows the team to record ‘business engagement’ – the number of times 
the team has interacted with a business. From 1 January 2018 to 31 March 2018, 
the team engaged 35 new businesses which sought several types of support 
including finding premises, general business advice, planning support, and 
signposting other support services. 

40. Due to the strengthened relationship with OxLEP, the team has been invited to 
support the Department of International Trade (DIT) with their account 
management of foreign owned businesses and inward investment enquiries. The 
team is actively leading the engagement of two foreign businesses in the district.  

Skills and Labour Force 
 
41. In 2017 the Oxfordshire Growth Board endorsed OxLEP’s proposal to work with 

developers to create Community Employment Plans (CEPs) which outline a 
commitment to provide employment and training opportunities and use local 
suppliers during the life of the construction phase. 

42. The Vale Draft Local Plan 2031 Part 2: Detailed Policies and Additional Sites 
includes Development Policy 10: Community Employment Plans (CEPs). It 
highlights that  

“All new developments should consider how they can create opportunities for 
local employment and the development of local skills and expertise, including 
through apprenticeships. They should also seek to maximise opportunities for 
sourcing suppliers and services locally during construction.” 

 
43. OxLEP is responsible for the management and delivery of CEPs. Due to OxLEP 

staffing issues, until December 2018 the economic development team is 
responsible for creating, managing and delivering CEPs in the district including: 

 St Modwen Crab Hill/King’s Grovel development (Wantage) 

 North Abingdon development – north of Dunmore Road and Twelve Acre Drive 

 Botley West Way redevelopment. 
Several events are planned for 2018/2019 including ‘Meet the Buyer’ events where 
local businesses can learn about opportunities to win contracts with the 
developers. 

 
44. From 1 February to 1 March 2018, the team received six new skill related 

enquiries: 

 request from a Faringdon business to locate an apprentice 

 request from King Alfred School to present at a careers fair 

 meeting with developer about the North Abingdon CEP 

 request to approve the Botley CEP 

 request to partner with the Young People’s Coordinator to be the Enterprise 
Advisor/Careers lead for Kingfisher School (Abingdon) and Matthew Arnold 
(Botley) 

 request to support Farmability (Wytham) to engage businesses to provide work 
experience opportunities for their workforce. Farmability offers a day service on 
a working farm for adults with learning disabilities and autism.  

Page 44



DRAFT 

 

 

 
45. Successes during the last quarter include: 

 partnered with Sovereign Housing and Aspire to hold a Jobs Fair in Abingdon 
on 26 April 2018. It was attended by 25 businesses and 300 job seekers 

 CEP for the Crab Hill/King’s Hill development was agreed 

 facilitated a meeting between Abingdon and Witney College and Didcot Garden 
Team 

 engaged the Oxford University Student Consultancy group to review the team’s 
communication strategy. 

 
Infrastructure and Planning 
 
46. The team is asked to comment on relevant planning applications. In 2017 formal 

comments were provided on 27 applications. From January – March 2018 
comments have been provided on seven applications: 

Registration No. Town Brief description 

P17/V3214/PEJ Faringdon Erection of mixed-use three storey building comprising A1 retail and C1 hotel 

P17/V3218/O Stanford in the 
Vale 

Extension of White Horse Business Park up to 15,287 sqm B2/B8, up to 
2,377 sqm B1. 

P17/V3239/PEJ Faringdon Proposed mixed use development comprising A1 retail and C1 hotel, to 
provide 74 letting rooms, land to the rear of Park Road 

P18/V0369/PEJ Milton 80 new bedrooms at Premier Inn, Milton Interchange 

P18/V0346/FUL Farmoor Increase in numbers of caravan and tent pitches and permission for 
seasonal bell tents and shepherds hut at the Valley Farm campsite. 

P18/V0492/FUL Abingdon Loss of employment space, The Old Gaol, Bridge Street, Abingdon  

P18/V0317/DIS Botley Discharge of Planning Condition 38 of planning application P16/V0246/FUL - 
Community Employment Plan 

 
47. The team is involved in the Harwell Campus Supplementary Planning Document 

(SPD) and Dalton Barracks SPD development and provides feedback at regular 
stakeholder meetings. 

48. The team supports the neighbourhood planning process and works with 
communities to explore their vision for the local economy. In 2017 the team held a 
workshop for the North Hinksey Neighbourhood Plan Economy Group and met 
with the Stanford in the Vale committee to discuss the need for employment space.  

49. Broadband coverage: 75 per cent of respondents to the BIS research cited access 
to high speed broadband as very important or important. The council is part of the 
Better Broadband for Oxfordshire (BBfO) project. There have been two phases to 
this project to date.  The first phase was a £25 million investment funded by 
Oxfordshire County Council, the government and BT. The second phase saw 
investment of £10.68 million made up of funding from the district councils, 
Oxfordshire County Council, BT, OxLEP, SEMLEP and government match funding.  
This included a contribution of £250,000 from Vale Council which was matched by 
government.  It also included prioritisation for the key business parks in the Vale 
and the delivery of superfast broadband to 4,498 Vale premises. 

50. The team represents the council on the BBfO project board. As at 5 April 2018, 
3,244 premises (72 per cent) had been delivered in the Vale. The remaining 28 
percent are due to be delivered by June 2018. From January – March 2018, four 

Page 45



DRAFT 

 

 

new cabinets were switched on: Ginge Road area, Rowstock; Stanford Road area, 
Buckland; Manor Road area, Wantage; B4019 Road area, Coleshill. 

 
51. As at 10 April 2018, more than 96 per cent of the district had access to superfast 

broadband. The remaining four per cent will be achieved by local promotion of the 
£67 billion Gigabit Broadband Voucher Scheme. Vouchers can be used to 
contribute to the installation cost of a gigabit capable connection. Businesses can 
claim up to £3,000 against the cost of connection either individually or as part of a 
group project. Residents claim up to £500 as part of a group project which also 
includes businesses. 

 
Source: https://labs.thinkbroadband.com/local/uk 

 
52. Oxford County Council (OCC) has submitted a bid for grant funding from the 

DEFRA Rural Broadband Infrastructure programme. The grant will be used to 
provide superfast broadband to the 1,403 business premises in rural Oxfordshire 
that are without existing or planned superfast broadband. The OCC is awaiting the 
outcome of the bid. 

 
 Business Space 
 
53. From 1 February to 1 April 2018, the team recorded 13 new enquiries about 

business space in the district. 

Page 46

https://labs.thinkbroadband.com/local/uk


DRAFT 

 

 

54. Most businesses are seeking between 3,000-10,000 square feet of office space. 
The spaces that are available are viewed as unaffordable or not value for money. 
Growing market town SMEs wish to remain in the town and will not consider 
moving. The primary reason is that staff do not wish to travel e.g. from Wantage to 
Faringdon. The commitment to remaining in the town is commendable but 
represents a barrier to growth when larger premises are unavailable. In late 2018, 
the team will hold a workshop that will explore ways to reconfigure existing spaces 
so that businesses can remain in their current premises and maximise the 
available space. 

Market Town Support 

55. Since 2014 the economic development team successfully achieved growth bids to 
support the work in Faringdon and Wantage, including the employment of 
contractors to act as market town co-ordinators in each town and deliver key 
economic development projects. 

56. In 2015 the team submitted a growth bid for 2016/2017 and 2017/2018 to provide 
funding towards the market town co-ordinator posts in Faringdon and Wantage. In 
2017, the team conducted a review of the market town initiative and sought 
feedback about what worked well, what could be improved, and future plans. The 
review highlighted that a great deal had been achieved in the last four years. 
However, several concerns were raised about how effective the posts were given 
the changing economic environment.   

57.  Based on the feedback from the review and recommendations of the BIS, a 
growth bid was submitted for a single market town officer post. This would allow 
the trail of a new approach to market town support. The growth bid was approved 
for a single market town officer post for 2018/2019 and 2019/2020.  

58. Based within the economic development team, the market town officer will cover 
Faringdon, Wantage, Grove, Botley and Abingdon (where required). The officer will 
have a whole-of-Vale, best practice view and provide a greater level of support to 
market town businesses and guide strategic discussions at the Joint Economic 
Forum and town team meetings. 

59. The council will continue to provide £1,000 per year for 2018/2019 and 2019/2020 
towards the Faringdon Town Team and Wantage Joint Economic Forum. It is 
intended that this funding is used to deliver economic development projects that 
benefit local businesses. 

60. The economic development team and the new market town officer will continue to 
work closely with each town and offer support and strategic advice at Forum, town 
team, chamber and business group meetings.  

Financial Implications 

61. The delivery of the BIS Action Plan 2017 to 2020 is funded through the standing 
economic development budget. 

62. The market town officer post is funded for 2018/2019 and 2019/2020 through an 
approved growth bid. 

Page 47



DRAFT 

 

 

Legal Implications 

63.  There are no legal implications associated with the delivery of the BIS Action Plan 
2017 to 2020. 

Risks 

64. The GDPR regulations require all contacts to ‘opt in’ to receive the Vale4Business 
newsletter and correspondence from the economic development team. The ‘opt in’ 
process is likely to reduce the number of businesses the team can contact. The 
team will explore new platforms, including Facebook, to increase business 
engagement and the number of subscribers to the newsletter. 

Other Implications 

65. The Science Vale marketing role is now part of the economic development team. 
This provides a terrific opportunity to continue the joint approach to promoting the 
entire Vale economy and the local innovative ecosystem. 

Conclusion 

66. The economic development team has worked hard to achieve the groundwork to 
deliver BIS Action Plan 2017 to 2020. Due to the Vale4Business brand relaunch, 
ambassadors, award programme, event programme, and joint working with the 
Science Vale team, overall business engagement has increased. The aim for the 
next six months is to further increase engagement with all Vale businesses 
(including market town and business park based businesses) and the unsolicited 
requests for support. This will be achieved by reviewing the economic development 
communications and engagement strategy, exploring use of Facebook, and 
strengthening the promotion of Vale economy through the Vale4Business and 
Science Vale brands.  

67. The team will continue to partner with the Young People’s coordinator to establish 
and foster ties between schools and businesses, increasing awareness of local 
SME career opportunities. 

68. The committee is invited to: 

 comment upon the delivery to 31 March 2018 of the Business and Innovation 
Strategy Action Plan 2017 to 2020.  

 make recommendations to the cabinet in respect of monitoring of the delivery 
and frequency of monitoring reports in respect of the Business and Innovation 
Strategy Action Plan 2017 to 2020. 

 

Background Papers 

 Nil. 

 

Page 48



DRAFT 

 

 

Appendix one: Twitter Statistics January 2018 to March 2018 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Appendix two: April 2018 newsletter 

Page 49



DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 50



DRAFT 

 

 

Appendix three: Vale4Business Awards ceremony – 18 May 2018 
 
 

     
 
 

    
 
 

    
 
 

Page 51



Mint UK - Company reports

 
 

 SegMintation
 

 How your companies breakdown by industry, region and turnover

 My search

 166 results
    Incorporation date:Incorporation date on and after 01/01/2018 and up to and including 31/03/2018
    Location Drayton, Radley, Stanford, ...

 
 Industry (UK SIC 2007) # of cos  
96 Other personal service activities 13  

 96. Other personal service activities

 62. Computer programming, consultancy and related activities

 70. Activities of head offices; management consultancy 
activities

 43. Specialised construction activities

 68. Real estate activities

 41. Construction of buildings

 47. Retail trade, except of motor vehicles and motorcycles

 86. Human health activities

 56. Food and beverage service activities

  Others

7.83%

7.83%

7.23%

45.78%

4.82%4.82%

4.82%

5.42%

5.42%

6.02%

 
62 Computer programming, consultancy and 

related activities
13

70 Activities of head offices; management 
consultancy activities

12

43 Specialised construction activities 10
68 Real estate activities 9
41 Construction of buildings 9
47 Retail trade, except of motor vehicles and 

motorcycles
8

86 Human health activities 8
56 Food and beverage service activities 8
71 Architectural and engineering activities; 

technical testing and analysis
6

72 Scientific research and development 4
74 Other professional, scientific and technical 

activities
4

59 Motion picture, video and television 
programme production, sound recording and 
music publishing activities

4

64 Financial service activities, except insurance 
and pension funding

4

85 Education 4
90 Creative, arts and entertainment activities 4
45 Wholesale and retail trade and repair of motor 

vehicles and motorcycles
3

93 Sports activities and amusement and 
recreation activities

3

58 Publishing activities 3
46 Wholesale trade, except of motor vehicles and 

motorcycles
2

81 Services to buildings and landscape activities 2
87 Residential care activities 2
32 Other manufacturing 2
82 Office administrative, office support and other 

business support activities
2

10 Manufacture of food products 2
27 Manufacture of electrical equipment 2
63 Information service activities 2
01 Crop and animal production, hunting and 

related service activities
2

52 Warehousing and support activities for 
transportation

1

98 Undifferentiated goods- and services-
producing activities of private households for 
own use

1

61 Telecommunications 1
80 Security and investigation activities 1
33 Repair and installation of machinery and 

equipment
1

77 Rental and leasing activities 1
 

Mint UK (Data update 20870 - 25/04/2018) - © BvD 25/04/2018 Page 1

Page 52

SAV_SmansM
Typewriter
Appendix three - MINT UK new business Vale data Jan - March 2018



Mint UK - Company reports

84 Public administration and defence; compulsory
 social security

1

18 Printing and reproduction of recorded media 1
25 Manufacture of fabricated metal products, 

except machinery and equipment
1

26 Manufacture of computer, electronic and 
optical products

1

21 Manufacture of basic pharmaceutical products 
and pharmaceutical preparations

1

78 Employment activities 1
35 Electricity, gas, steam and air conditioning 

supply
1

73 Advertising and market research 1
94 Activities of membership organisations 1
66 Activities auxiliary to financial services and 

insurance activities
1

55 Accommodation 1
  n.a. 2
  All 166

 NUTS region % # of cos  Density
South East (England) 100.00 166  

None Least Most

 
All 100 166

 Turnover (£ m) % # of cos  
1. n.a. 0.00 166  

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

# of cos

1

 
All 100 166

 

Mint UK (Data update 20870 - 25/04/2018) - © BvD 25/04/2018 Page 2

Page 53



1 
05 June 2018 

Schedule for Scrutiny Committees  

(further items to be added to schedule as required) 

Meeting 
date 

Council Agenda items Purpose of Report Invited Cabinet members Report Author Head of Service Strategic 
Lead 

Thurs 28 
June 
 

Joint Community Safety 
Partnership Annual Report 
 
 
5 Councils’ Partnership 

 HR, Payroll and IT 
 

Annual Review  
 
 
 
To review the performance 
of these contracts 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Caroline 
Newton/Eric 
Batts 
 
Bill Service/Roger 
Cox 

Diane Foster 
 
 
 
 

Liz Hayden 
 
 
 
Andrew Down 

 

Tues 24 
July 

South Corporate Plan Refresh Progress report  Kevin Bulmer  Sally Truman Adrianna 
Partridge 

 

Thurs 26 
July 

Vale Abbey Meadows 
 
 
Corporate Plan Refresh  
 
Abingdon Redevelopment: 
Charter Centre 

Progress report 
 
 
Progress report 
 
To brief committee on the 
history of regeneration plans, 
where we are today, and 
what’s next.  

 Alice Badcock 
 
 
Ed Blagrove 
 
Mike Murray 

Dylan Evans 
 
 
Sally Truman 
 
Suzanne Malcolm 

Donna Pentelow 
 
Adrianna 
Partridge 
 
Suzanne Malcolm 

 

Tues 11 
Sept 

South Financial Outturn 2017/18 
 
 
 
 
Leisure Strategy 
 

To monitor the final revenue 
and capital expenditure 
against budget for the 
financial year 2017/18. 
 
To consider the responses to 
the public consultation 

 David Dodds 
 
 
 
 
Lynn Lloyd 
 

Richard Spraggett 
(Capita) 
 
 
 
Dylan Evans 
 

William Jacobs 
 
 
 
 
Donna Pentelow 
 

 

P
age 54

A
genda Item

 9



2 
05 June 2018 

 
S106 Agreements 
 
CIL Spending 

 
Annual Monitoring Report 
 
To consider a strategy 

 
Felix Bloomfield 
 
Paul Harrison 

 
 
 
Jayne Bolton 

 
Adrian Duffield 
 
Suzanne Malcolm 

Thurs 13 
Sept 

Vale Annual Performance 
Review of The Beacon 
 
Financial Outturn 2017/18 
 
 
 
 
Planning Budgets 
 
 
Council Tax Reduction 
Scheme 

Annual Review  
 
 
To monitor the final revenue 
and capital expenditure 
against budget for the 
financial year 2017/18. 
 
To review the effectiveness 
of recent growth bids 
 
Annual Review  

 Alice Badcock 
 
 
Robert Sharp 
 
 
 
 
Roger Cox 
 
 
Robert Sharp 

Duncan Grainge 
 
 
Richard Spraggett 
(Capita) 
 
 
 
Adrian Duffield 
 
 
Paul Howden 

Donna Pentelow 
 
 
William Jacobs 
 
 
 
 
Adrian Duffield 
 
 
William Jacobs 

 

Thurs 20 
Sept 
Some 
items 
may be 
deferred
to the 
October 
meeting  

Joint New Housing Allocations 
Policy 
 
Annual Performance 
Review of Biffa 
 
 
Annual Performance 
Review of Sodexo 
 
 
Annual Performance 
Review of GLL 
 

To respond to the public 
consultation 
 
Annual Review  
 
 
 
Annual Review  
 
 
 
Annual Review  
 

 Caroline 
Newton/Elaine 
Ware 
Caroline 
Newton/Elaine 
Ware 
 
Caroline 
Newton/Elaine 
Ware 
 
Lynn Lloyd/Alice 
Badcock 

Phil Ealey 
 
 
Ian Matten 
 
 
 
Ian Matten 
 
 
 
Chris Webb 
 
 

Liz Hayden 
 
 
Liz Hayden 
 
 
 
Liz Hayden 
 
 
 
Donna Pentelow 
 

 

P
age 55



3 
05 June 2018 

Thurs 18 
October 

Vale Air Quality Action Plan Progress report  Elaine Ware  Liz Hayden  

Tues 30 
October 
(tbc) 

Joint HMO Policy and Strategy 
 
 
 
CAB/Wantage 
Independent Advice 
Centre 

To consider the impact of 
legislative changes 
 
 
Presentation 

 Caroline 
Newton/Elaine 
Ware 
 
Lynn Lloyd/Alice 
Badcock 

Phil Ealey 
 
 
 
Shona Ware 

Liz Hayden 
 
 
 
Adrianna 
Partridge 

 

Tues 27 
Nov 

South        

Thurs 29 
Nov 

Vale        

Tues 4 
Dec 

Joint S106 negotiation, CIL 
charges, and management 
of spend.  
 
OXLEP: funding, 
accountability, and bid 
success  
Commissioning and 
procurement, and 
contract management - 
skills training and 
qualifications 

 
 
 
 
To review current processes 
and recommend 
improvements 

 Paul 
Harrison/Mike 
Murray 
 
Jane 
Murphy/Roger 
Cox 
Jane 
Murphy/Roger 
Cox 

 Suzanne Malcolm 
 
 
 
Andrew Down 
 
 
All? 
 

 

Tues 22 
January 
2019 

South  Corporate Delivery Plan 
Progress Report 
 

Regular Monitoring Report 
 
 

 
 
 

Kevin Bulmer 
 
 
Lynn Lloyd 

Sally Truman 
 
 
Dylan Evans 

Adrianna 
Partridge 
 
Donna Pentelow 
 

 

P
age 56



4 
05 June 2018 

Thurs 24 
January 

Vale Corporate Delivery Plan 
Progress Report 
 
Annual Monitoring Report 

Regular Monitoring Report 
 
 
Annual Review 

 Ed Blagrove 
 
 
Roger Cox 

Sally Truman 
 
 
Ben Duffy 

Adrianna 
Partridge 
 
Adrian Duffield 

 

Tues 5 
February 

South Review of Final Draft 
Budget 

To make recommendations 
to Cabinet 
 

 David Dodds Richard Spraggett 
(Capita) 

William Jacobs  

Thurs 7 
February 

Vale Review of Final Draft 
Budget 

To make recommendations 
to Cabinet 

 Robert Sharp Richard Spraggett 
(Capita) 

William Jacobs  

Possible 
addition
al 
meeting 

Joint        

Thurs 7 
March 

Joint Board Reports 
 

To review their efficacy  Ed 
Blagrove/Kevin 
Bulmer 

Chris Draper 
 

Adrianna 
Partridge 

 

Tues 26 
March 

South        

Thurs 28 
March 

Vale        

 

  

P
age 57



5 
05 June 2018 

 

Dates to be identified for the following items: 

South 

Berinsfield Redevelopment Project 

Planning Appeals (requested 26.9.17) 

Performance Review of Cornerstone 

Vale 

Local Plan Process – Costs & Lessons Learnt (requested 20.9.17) 

Report of Budget Scrutiny Task Group 

Joint 

Oxfordshire Growth Board Governance Arrangements 

Science Vale Marketing Campaign 

Reallocation of £295k Didcot Garden Town Grant 

Planning Budgets 

 
The Cabinet work programmes can be accessed via the following links: 
South 
http://democratic.southoxon.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=121&RD=0 
Vale 
http://democratic.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=507&RD=0 
Meeting Start times: Joint: 6:30; South: 6:30; Vale: 7.00; 

Scrutiny Work Item Preparation 
Members are invited to consider the following headings for future agenda items 

Item name 

Date of report to Committee  

What do we want to know about? What topics should the report provider include in their report to Scrutiny? 

Who to invite to Committee? (Cabinet member(s) and Head(s) of Service). Anyone from outside agencies?  

P
age 58

http://democratic.southoxon.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=121&RD=0
http://democratic.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=507&RD=0

	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 08/02/2018 Scrutiny Committee
	Minutes


	6 Oxfordshire Infrastructure Strategy
	Oxis Appendix 1a
	Scrutiny OXIS Appendix 1b
	Oxis Appendices 2-4

	7 Business and Innovation Strategy Action Plan 2017 to 2020 Update
	Scrutiny 140618 BIS Action Plan update - Appendix four

	9 Work schedule and dates for all South and Vale scrutiny meetings



